#### June 1, 2021

#### CALL TO ORDER

Chairperson Bode called the regular meeting of the Davison County Board of Commissioners to order at 9:00 a.m. All members of the Board were present. Also present was Deputy Auditor Matthews.

### PLEDGE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairperson Bode.

### **APPROVE MINUTES AS AMENDED**

Motion by Claggett, second by Weitala to approve the minutes from the May 25, 2021 as amended, striking the synopsis of the Dept. Head Discussion. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

Deputy Auditor Matthews asked a question of the Board as to the formatting of the Commission Minutes. It was instructed by the Board that the Davison County Commission Minutes should reflect action minutes and not discussion minutes in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order.

#### **PUBLIC INPUT**

Jim Cranny, resident of Prosper Township, and Dave Doering, resident of Mitchell Township, appeared before the board regarding the road condition of 256<sup>th</sup> St. between 408<sup>th</sup> Ave. and Rowley St.

#### **RECESS BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS**

At 9:20 a.m. Chairperson Bode recessed the Board of Commissioners so the Planning & Zoning Board could meet briefly.

#### **RECONVENE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS**

At 9:35 a.m. Chairperson Bode reconvened the Board of Commissioners.

# FIRST READING OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE DAVSION COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING ORDINANCE AND PUBLIC HEARING

At 9:35 a.m. motion by Claggett, second by Kiner to hold the first public hearing and reading on the proposed amendments to the Davison County Planning and Zoning Ordinance. A roll call vote was taken as follows Claggett-aye, Kiner-aye, Reider-aye, Weitala-aye, Bode-aye. Motion carried.

# **Recommended Changes to the**

# **Davison County Zoning Ordinance**

#### **Introduction:**

- 1. Page 1-Will need new dates on the Ordinance dates.
  - a. June 8, 2021
- 2. Page 2-Update Planning Commission members.
  - a. Steve Thiesse, Vice-Chairperson; Dave Anderson
- 3. Page 3-Update ordinance page showing dates/signatures.
- 4. Page 5-Update ordinance history.

#### **Article 1: Definitions**

- 5. Page 9-Added a definition of Cannabis (or Marijuana).
  - a. Cannabis (or Marijuana) all parts of any plant of the genus cannabis, whether growing or not, in its natural and unaltered state, except for drying or curing and crushing or crumbling. The term includes an altered state of marijuana absorbed into the human body. The term does not include fiber produced from the mature stalks of such plant, or oil or cake made from the seeds of such plant. The term does not include the plant Cannabis sativa L. and any part of that plant, including the seeds thereof and all derivatives, extracts, cannabinoids, isomers, acids, salts, and salts of isomers, whether growing or not, with a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol concentration of not more than three-tenths of one percent on a dry weight basis.
- 6. Page 9-Added a definition of Cannabis Cultivation Facility.
  - a. Cannabis Cultivation Facility a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and related supplies to a cannabis establishment.
- 7. Page 10-Added a definition of Cannabis Dispensary.
  - a. Cannabis Dispensary a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, stores, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials.
- 8. Page 10 Added a definition of Cannabis Establishments.
  - a. Cannabis Establishments a cannabis cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a cannabis product manufacturing facility, or a cannabis dispensary.
- 9. Page 10-Added a definition of Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility.
  - a. Cannabis Product Manufacturing Facility a legally licensed entity that acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis products to a cannabis dispensary.
- 10. Page 10-Added a definition of Cannabis Testing Facility.
  - a. Cannabis Testing Facility a legally licensed entity legally authorized to analyze the safety and potency of cannabis.

#### **Article 9: Rural Commercial District**

11. Page 82-Added Cannabis Establishments to Section 9:04 Conditional Uses and Structures.

The Board made no suggested changes to proposed ordinance as presented by the Davison County Planning & Zoning Board.

#### **PUBLIC INPUT**

Bruce Haines, Prosper Township Treasurer, discussed with the Board the condition of 256<sup>th</sup> Street.

# FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF LOCAL MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT LICENSES

At 9:45 a.m. motion by Claggett, second by Reider to hold the first reading on the proposed ordinance regarding the issuance of Local Medical Cannabis Establishment licenses. A roll call vote was taken as follows Claggett-aye, Kiner-aye, Weitala-aye, Reider-aye, Bode-aye. Motion carried.

#### AN ORDINANCE REGARDING THE ISSUANCE OF LOCAL MEDICAL CANNABIS ESTABLISHMENT LICENSES.

WHEREAS, South Dakota medical cannabis laws under SDCL Chapter 34-20G are effective July 1, 2021;

WHEREAS, medical cannabis dispensaries, or medical cannabis establishments, the terms being used in differing, but related, purposes for regulation, licensing, and permitting, will be, after July 1, 2021, a legal, regulated business pursuit in South Dakota;

WHEREAS, under SDCL 34-20G-58 a local government may enact an Ordinance not in conflict with SDCL Chapter 34-20G, governing the number and time, place, manner, and number of medical cannabis establishments in the locality and may establish civil penalties for violation of an Ordinance governing the time, place, and manner of a medical cannabis establishment that may operate in the locality;

WHEREAS, Davison County, South Dakota ("County"), finds that the County's current ordinances, regulations, and controls do not adequately address the unique needs and impacts of medical cannabis establishments as defined in SDCL 34-20G-1;

WHEREAS, the South Dakota Department of Health has been directed to promulgate rules pursuant to SDCL Chapter 1-26 not later than October 29, 2021, as defined by SDCL 34-20G-72;

WHEREAS, during the time between July 1, 2021, and potentially as late as October 29, 2021, the County will not know State of South Dakota standards for medical cannabis establishments;

WHEREAS, the County acknowledges that in the absence of any license or permit process being established by the County the South Dakota Department of Health may issue a license to a medical cannabis establishment under the authority of SDCL 34-20G-55(1)(e);

WHEREAS, potential proprietors of medical cannabis establishments need some predictability in permitting processes, both on a state and a local level, and need to avoid the possibility of stranded or otherwise unproductive investments;

WHEREAS, the County hereby exercises its authority under SDCL 7-18A-2, SDCL 34-20G-58, and SDCL 34-20G-60 to establish an Ordinance regarding the issuance of licenses for medical cannabis establishments within the County;

### NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY DAVISON COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA:

#### Section 1. Definitions.

Unless otherwise defined herein, the terms herein have the same meaning as set forth in SDCL 34-20G-1. The following words and phrases, when used in herein have the meanings respectively assigned to them:

- A. "Cannabis products," any concentrated cannabis, cannabis extracts, and products that are infused with cannabis or an extract thereof, and are intended for use or consumption by humans. The term includes edible cannabis products, beverages, topical products, ointments, oils, and tinctures;
- B. "Cannabis product manufacturing facility," an entity registered with the South Dakota Department of Health pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G that acquires, possesses, manufactures, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis products to a medical cannabis dispensary;
- C. "Cannabis testing facility," or "testing facility" an independent entity registered with the South Dakota Department of Health pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G to analyze the safety and potency of cannabis;
- D. "Cultivation facility," an entity registered with the South Dakota Department of Health pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G that acquires, possesses, cultivates, delivers, transfers, transports, supplies, or sells cannabis and related supplies to a medical cannabis establishment;
- E. "Medical cannabis" or "cannabis," cannabis as defined in SDCL Chapter 34-20G-1 (3), (12), and (14);
- F. "Medical cannabis dispensary" or "dispensary," an entity registered with the South Dakota Department of Health pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G that acquires, possesses, stores, delivers, transfers, transports, sells, supplies, or dispenses cannabis, cannabis products, paraphernalia, or related supplies and educational materials to cardholders;
- G. "Medical cannabis establishment," a cultivation facility, a cannabis testing facility, a cannabis product manufacturing facility, or a dispensary.

#### Section 2. General Requirements.

- A. <u>State Laws.</u> All applicants, licensees or other persons subject to these regulations will comply at all times with all provisions of SDCL Chapter 34-20G and all regulations promulgated thereunder. Any violation under such laws or regulations constitutes a violation under this Ordinance and will be grounds to deny an application or for an enforcement action. To the extent the State of South Dakota has adopted or adopts in the future any laws or rules stricter than or inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, those laws or regulations will control. Any waiver of requirements of the South Dakota Code or regulations issued by the State of South Dakota will not constitute a waiver of compliance requirements for local licensing purposes.
- B. <u>Rules by the Davison County Commission.</u> The Davison County Commission is authorized to make rules and publish forms consistent with the intent and spirit of this Ordinance concerning applications, the application process, the information required of applicants, the application procedures and the administration and procedures to be used and followed in the application and application hearing process.
- C. <u>Conditional Orders.</u> Where reasonably necessary and otherwise consistent with the provisions of this Ordinance, the Davison County Commission may conditionally approve any application made under this Ordinance and may also issue a conditional license or place conditions on an existing license.
- D. <u>Effect of Investigation.</u> Except for a license renewal application, the Davison County Commission will not accept any application from a person the Davison County Commission knows to be under investigation or facing disciplinary action by Davison County or the South Dakota Department of Revenue & Regulation or the South Dakota Department of Health for a violation of this Ordinance or state laws or regulations relating to medical cannabis.

#### E. <u>Applications in General</u>.

Unless specific provisions of this Ordinance direct otherwise, the following rules will apply to all applications made under this Ordinance:

- 1. applications will be filed along with payment or proof of payment and held for a pre-acceptance review period not to exceed thirty days. Filed applications must be complete.
- 2. If, after review, an application is found to be complete, the Davison County Commission will formally accept the application and note the date of formal acceptance.
- 3. If, after review, an application is found to be incomplete, the Davison County Commission will reject and return the application to the licensee or applicant. Such licensee or applicant will be entitled to a refund of the application fee, but may permit the Davison County Commission to hold the deposited fee pending resubmission, if resubmission is permitted.
- 4. If after formal acceptance under paragraph 2 above, the Davison County Commission later discovers that the application is incomplete or otherwise deficient, the Davison County Commission will permit the applicant or licensee to amend the application within thirty days without altering the accepted status of the application. If, however, the deficiency has not been cured within that time, the Davison County Commission will reject and return the application.

#### Section 3. Number and Types of Licenses Authorized to be Issued.

- A. Medical cannabis dispensary licenses will be issued.
- B. The number of medical cannabis dispensary licenses authorized to be issued within Davison County and outside the corporate limits of the City of Mitchell, the City of Mount Vernon, and the Town of Ethan, all in Davison County, South Dakota, is one (1).
- C. Davison County will not issue nor allow licenses for cannabis product manufacturing facilities, cannabis cultivation facilities, or cannabis testing facilities.
- D. A license provided and issued pursuant to this Ordinance will specify the date of issuance, the date of approval, the period of licensure, which will be one (1) year from the date of approval. The licensee will conspicuously place the license at all times on the licensed premises.

#### Section 4. Licensed Premises and Possession.

- A. Possession Generally.
  - 1. No application for a new license, for a change of location, or for a transfer of ownership will be accepted unless the Davison County Commission receives sufficient proof that the business is in possession of the premises or will be entitled to possession of the premises for the entire period of the license.
  - 2. Unless a condition of approval provides otherwise, an approved applicant must at all times after approval maintain possession of the premises to be licensed.
  - 3. A licensee must maintain possession of its licensed premises at all times after licensure. Possession is a prerequisite of licensure and any loss of possession while licensed invalidates the license.
  - 4. Loss of possession by licensees or approved applicants will be addressed as provided below.
- B. <u>Zoning.</u> No application for a new license or for change of location will be accepted until the premises to be licensed have been approved as a conditional use in the Davison County Rural Commercial District by the Davison County Planning Commission and the Davison County Board of Adjustment. Any waiver of requirements pursuant to State laws or regulations issued by the State will not constitute a waiver of compliance requirements for local licensing purposes.
- C. <u>Continuing Land Use Compliance.</u> In addition to any specific licensing requirements imposed by this Ordinance or by SDCL Chapter 34-20G all applicants, approved applicants, and licensees must remain in compliance with the requirements of the Davison County Zoning Ordinance and the terms of any conditional use permit issued thereunder. Any waiver of requirements pursuant to State laws or regulations issued by the State will not constitute a waiver of compliance requirements for local licensing purposes.
- D. <u>License Issuance</u>. In the event that the Davison County Commission approves an application for a new license or for a change of location, the license will not issue until the building in which the business is to be conducted is ready for occupancy with such furniture, fixtures, and equipment in place as are necessary to comply with the applicable provisions of State law and regulations promulgated pursuant thereto and then only after

the Davison County Planning & Zoning Department has inspected the premises to determine that the applicant has complied with the plans and specifications submitted by the applicant and as approved by the Davison County Planning Commission and Davison County Board of Adjustment.

E. <u>Inspection</u>. The licensed premises, including but not limited to any places where cannabis is stored or dispensed, will be subject to inspection by officers of Davison County and any other state or local law enforcement personnel during all business hours and other times of apparent activity, for the purpose of inspection or investigation. The officers of Davison County may conduct unannounced or covert compliance inspections. For examination of any inventory or books and records required to be kept by the licensees, access will be required during business hours. Where any part of the licensed premises consists of a locked area, upon demand to the licensee, such area will be made available for inspection without delay and, upon request by authorized representatives of the Davison County Commission, the licensee will open the area for inspection.

#### Section 5. General Requirements of License.

- A. A licensed medical cannabis dispensary will report each transfer or change of financial interest in the license to the Davison County Commission prior to any transfer or change. The licensed medical cannabis dispensary must also report to the Davison County Commission, within one (1) day of discovering the same, any act, omission, or change in circumstance that could reasonably appear to result in the violation of any provision of this Ordinance or of any other state or local law.
- B. A licensed medical cannabis dispensary will notify the Davison County Commission in writing within ten (10) days after an owner or officer ceases to manage, own or otherwise be associated with the operation. A licensed medical cannabis dispensary will also notify the Davison County Commission in writing of the name, address, and date of birth of any new owner or officer within ten (10) days of the new owner or officer beginning to manage, own or be associated with the operation.
- C. A licensed medical cannabis dispensary will, at all times, meet and comply with the following operating conditions and standards:
  - 1. An applicant or licensed medical cannabis dispensary will not take any actions for which a license is required without holding both a valid license issued under this Ordinance and a valid corresponding State license.
  - 2. No license otherwise approved pursuant to this Ordinance will be issued until the license, application fees and any licensing or operating fees due to the State of South Dakota and/or the County of Davison have been fully paid and received.
  - 3. Each licensee will retain all books and records necessary to show fully the business transactions of the licensee for a period of the current tax year and the three (3) immediately prior tax years. The same will be available on demand to Davison County.
- D. Any medical cannabis dispensary licensed pursuant to this Ordinance may be required to demonstrate, upon demand by the Davison County Commission or by law enforcement officers, that the source and quantity of any cannabis found upon the licensed premises is in full compliance with any applicable State law or regulation.

#### Section 6. New Application - Standards of Approval.

- A. The standards set forth in this section apply to new applications, but some or all may also apply to other application types or to establish a violation in an enforcement action. In such cases, the applicability of this section will be identified by reference in subsequent sections of this Ordinance. For a new application, the applicant bears the burden in demonstrating compliance with these standards for approval.
- B. To approve a new application, the Davison County Commission must find as follows:
  - 1. The applicant is neither prohibited from holding a license under nor is in clear violation of any provision of this Ordinance or of SDCL Chapter 34-20G;
  - 2. The applicant is qualified to operate a medical cannabis dispensary in compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance and SDCL Chapter 34-20G and associated regulations;
  - 3. The operation of the proposed medical cannabis dispensary is generally consistent with the nature of the neighborhood and will not adversely affect the public health, safety, or welfare of the immediate neighborhood and the zoning district as a whole; and
  - 4. The applicant has made no material misrepresentations on its application or other documents submitted or provided to the Davison County Commission in advance of the hearing or through evidence presented at the hearing itself.
- C. For any applicant that is required by the Davison County Commission to have a background check performed as a part of their local license application, the Davison County Commission must find that the applicant is of good moral character. A finding that an applicant is not of good moral character must be based on the conviction of one or more felonies or crimes of moral turpitude. If the Davison County Commission determines an applicant is not of good moral character, it will permit the applicant to present evidence to the contrary, at a subsequent date if necessary.

#### Section 7. New Application - Restrictions - Procedures.

- A. <u>General.</u> Each application and any supporting documentation or submittals will be verified by the oath or affirmation of the persons submitting the application and any other person as may be prescribed by the State of South Dakota or the Davison County Commission. An applicant will file at the time of application for a license pursuant to this Ordinance plans and specifications for the interior of the building if the building to be occupied is in existence at the time of the application. If the building is not in existence or alteration to the building is required at the time of the application, the applicant will file a plot plan with the premises outlined in red and a detailed sketch for the interior and will further submit an architect's drawing of the building to be constructed. In addition, an applicant will file the following at the time of application for a license pursuant to this Ordinance.
  - 1. An operating plan for the proposed medical cannabis dispensary including the following information:
    - a. A description of the products and services to be provided by the facility.
    - b. A floor plan showing all interior dimensions of the licensed premises and the layout of the medical cannabis establishment, including all limited

access areas, areas of ingress and egress, and all security cameras. Such floor plan will also show the principal uses of the floor area depicted therein;

- c. A description of the design of the establishment evidencing that the design conforms to applicable Davison County zoning and building regulations;
- d. A security plan indicating how the applicant intends to comply with the requirements of SDCL Chapter 34-20G and any regulations promulgated thereunder.
- 2. A statement of whether or not any person holding any ownership interest has:
  - a. Been denied an application for a medical cannabis dispensary license, or any other type of cannabis license, by the state in this or any other jurisdiction or had such a license suspended or revoked; and
  - b. Been convicted of a felony or has completed any portion of a sentence due to a felony charge within the preceding five (5) years.
- 3. Proof that the applicant has, or will, satisfy all Davison County Planning & Zoning Compliance requirements.
- 4. All licensing, operating, and other fees due and payable to operate a medical cannabis dispensary as determined by the Davison County Commission have been paid.
- 5. Any additional document(s) or information reasonably requested by the Davison County Commission.
- B. <u>State Application.</u> The State application will be incorporated into the local application and, if the same has not been provided by the South Dakota Department of Health, the applicant must submit a copy of its State application along with its local application. Any representations made in the State application will be considered as representations made to the Davison County Commission.
- C. <u>Completeness.</u> After receiving an application for a new license, the Davison County Commission will review the application for completeness. The Davison County Commission will inform the applicant in writing of its determination on the question of whether or not the application is complete within thirty (30) days of its receipt of the application. An applicant who has been denied a determination of completeness will resubmit the application to correct any deficiencies in completeness no later than thirty (30) days after being informed of the denial. The Davison County Commission may deny the application of an applicant who fails to correct identified deficiencies within thirty (30) days after being informed of such deficiencies. Any applicant whose application has been rejected and who still intends to apply for a license under this Ordinance is required to submit a new application, if permitted, with a new application date.
- D. <u>Amendments.</u> The Davison County Commission may permit amendments to a submitted application that are consistent with local restrictions on medical cannabis dispensaries, except that no amendment to change the applicant listed in a submitted application will be permitted.
- E. <u>Scheduling Hearing</u>. Unless an application is approved directly by the Davison County Commission as provided in this Ordinance, a public hearing will be scheduled for every application for a new medical cannabis dispensary license and for change of location.
  - 1. <u>Timing.</u> The Davison County Commission will schedule a public hearing upon the application to be held not less than thirty (30) days after the date of the

determination of completeness. Unless an applicant is able to demonstrate extraordinary circumstances, no hearing on an application for a new medical cannabis dispensary will be held until the applicant has received its state license for the same.

- 2. Public Notice. The Davison County Commission will cause to be posted and published public notice of such hearing not less than ten (10) days prior to the hearing. Public notice will be given by the posting of a sign in a conspicuous place on the premises for which application has been made and, further, by publication in a newspaper of general circulation in Davison County. Notice given by posting will include a sign, not less than 22" wide and 26" high, composed of letters not less than one inch in height and stating the type of license applied for, the date that the application has been determined to be complete, the date of the hearing, the name and address of the applicant and such other information as may be required to apprise the public of the nature of the application. The sign will also contain the names and addresses of the applicants, owners, officers, members, shareholders, and managers of the facility to be licensed. The notice given by publication will contain the same information. If the building in which the cannabis is to be dispensed is in existence at the time of the application, a sign will be posted in such place so as to be conspicuous and plainly visible to the general public. If the building is not yet constructed at the time of application, the Davison County Planning & Zoning Director will post a sign at the premises upon which the building is to be constructed in such a manner that the notice will be conspicuous and plainly visible to the general public.
- 3. <u>Initial Findings.</u> No less than five (5) days prior to the date of a scheduled public hearing on a license application, the Davison County Planning & Zoning Director, or his or her designee, will issue a memorandum, based upon his or her investigation and review of the application to date, containing initial findings and recommendations concerning the requirements of and standards of approval for an application. The memorandum will be directed to the applicant and copies of the same will be made available to members of the public who request it. The memorandum will not bind the Davison County Commission, but, if the findings and recommendations are not rebutted, the Davison County Commission may accept the memorandum as sufficient evidence to make a decision consistent with the Planning & Zoning Director's recommendation.
- F. Hearings.
  - 1. At a public hearing for an application submitted under this Ordinance, the Davison County Commission may consider the following evidence:
    - a. The application;
    - b. Information submitted by the applicant in connection with the application;
    - c. Findings, reports, and other information submitted by staff; and
    - d. Evidence presented at the hearing by staff, the applicant, persons associated with the applicant, persons in favor of the application and persons opposed to the application.
  - 2. Subject to the restrictions of this subsection F., an application for a new medical cannabis dispensary license or for change of location may be approved by vote of the Davison County Commission without opening or holding a hearing. Any such

approval may take place only at the meeting for which the hearing on the application is scheduled. The Chair of the Davison County Commission will announce each such application, and if any member of the public intending to oppose the application, any board member, or member of staff requests that a hearing be held, the hearing on the application will be opened and held.

G. <u>Written Decision.</u> Within forty (40) days after the meeting, the Davison County Commission will issue its decision approving or denying an application for local licensure. The decision will be in writing and will state the reasons for the decision. The Davison County Commission will send a copy of the decision by certified mail to the State and to the applicant at the address shown on the application. Any decision approving a license application may include certain conditions imposed by the Davison County Commission in addition to compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this Ordinance and compliance with State law and regulations.

#### Section 8. Conditionally Approved Applications.

- A. <u>Privileges of licensure not vested</u>. An order of the Davison County Commission conditionally approving an application is not a license but only the right to a license once certain conditions have been met. A conditionally approved applicant is not a licensee and may in no case exercise the privileges of licensure, including operating a licensed establishment or taking any other preliminary steps for which a license is required.
- B. Jurisdiction of the Davison County Commission. A conditionally approved applicant is subject to the jurisdiction of the Davison County Commission and to investigation by Davison County, disciplinary actions by Davison County, and any other requirements or procedures imposed by law or by order of the Davison County Commission. All rights conveyed through the Davison County Commission's approval or conditional approval may be suspended or revoked through the same procedure, and with the same effect, as a license.
- C. <u>Violations and Administrative Revocation</u>. It will be a violation of this section for a conditionally approved applicant to commit an act or omission, which, if committed by a licensee, would be a violation of any other provision of this Ordinance or of SDCL Chapter 34-20G. Additionally, the Davison County Commission may also, without finding a violation, administratively rescind an approval order and revoke all rights conferred thereby if it finds that a circumstance necessary to its approval has materially changed or ceased to exist. At any point prior to the issuance of the license, the Davison County Commission may stay the issuance of a license if it reasonably appears that a conditionally approved applicant has violated or is being investigated for violating any provision of this Ordinance or of SDCL Chapter 34-20G, or if it reasonably appears that there are grounds to rescind the conditional approval order.
- D. <u>Conditional Approval Extensions</u>. When any conditionally approved applicant requires an extension to complete an act required by its approval order, the Davison County Commission may, unless this Ordinance or SDCL Chapter 34-20G or any regulations promulgated thereunder require otherwise, extend the term of the order if the applicant requesting the extension demonstrates (1) the request was filed promptly after discovering the need for an extension, (2) the delay at issue was reasonably justified, and (3), the order has not expired and the applicant is in compliance with the terms and

conditions of the order. Unless otherwise restricted by this Ordinance, the Davison County Commission may administratively extend the term of an order by no more than thirty (30) days to allow a request for a further extension to be heard by the Davison County Commission at a future meeting.

#### Section 9. Transfer of Ownership - Change of Owners - Change in Ownership Structure.

- A. Licenses or approvals issued pursuant to this Ordinance are not transferable except as provided in this Ordinance. Furthermore, no change of owners or change in ownership structure for a licensed or approved business will be permitted except as provided in this Ordinance.
- B. For a transfer of ownership, change of owners, or change in ownership structure, a license holder must apply to the State and Davison County. In determining whether to permit a transfer of ownership, the Davison County Commission must make the findings required in Section 6., subsections B.1., B.2, and B.4., above. If an application made under this section proposes to change the name of the licensee or to transfer the license to a different person or entity, the Davison County Commission must also find that the renamed licensee or transferee is or will be entitled to possession of the licensed premises.
- C. When a license holder applies to transfer ownership, change owners, or change ownership structure a true copy of all, fully executed, ownership transfer, change, or ownership structure changing documents, including a statement of the full consideration being exchanged for any ownership transfer, must be submitted with such application.
- D. The Davison County Commission may hold a hearing on an application submitted under this section. No less than five (5) days prior to the date of a hearing on an application submitted under this section, the Davison County Planning & Zoning Director or his or her designee will make known, based upon his or her investigation and review of the application to date, findings concerning the application.

#### Section 10. License Renewals.

- A. A licensee must apply for the renewal of an existing license to the Davison County Commission not less than forty five (45) days prior to the date of the expiration of the license. If a license expires after a renewal application has been accepted but before the application has been heard, the licensee may, unless the Davison County Commission determines otherwise, continue to operate until the Davison County Commission makes a decision. The Davison County Commission will not accept an application for renewal of a license after the date of expiration. The term of any renewed license will commence upon the expiration of the previous license and remain in effect for one (1) year from that date.
- B. The Davison County Commission may schedule a hearing on the application for renewal if it appears that one or more circumstances exist that may justify an adverse decision.
- C. The Davison County Commission may refuse to renew a license if it finds one or more of the following:

- 1. The licensee or applicant has violated, does not meet, no longer meets, or has failed to comply with any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Ordinance or SDCL Chapter 34-20G;
- 2. The licensee or applicant has failed to comply with any special terms or conditions that were placed on its license pursuant to an order of the South Dakota Department of Health or of the Davison County Commission; or
- 3. The licensed premises have been operated in a manner that adversely affects the public health, safety or welfare or the safety of the immediate neighborhood or the zoning district in which the establishment is located.
- D. If the Davison County Commission finds after a hearing held pursuant to this section that there are grounds to refuse to renew, it may consider, except as otherwise required, the severity, frequency, and number of prior violations in deciding whether to refuse to renew the license.
- E. In the event that a hearing is scheduled, notice of such hearing will be posted on the licensed premises for a period of ten (10) days prior to the hearing and the applicant will be notified of such hearing at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing. The hearing and the more specific requirements of notice will comport with the other provisions of this Ordinance concerning public hearings. No renewal application will be denied without a hearing.
- F. Subject to the continuation provision set forth in Section 10., A., above, relating to expiration after a renewal application is submitted but before the renewal is heard by the Davison County Commission, a licensee whose license has expired must not, under any circumstances, dispense any cannabis until a new required license has been obtained.

#### Section 11. Unlawful Acts: License Violations.

- A. It is unlawful and a violation of the terms and conditions of every license issued under this Ordinance to cultivate, manufacture, distribute, store, test or sell cannabis, except in compliance with the terms, conditions, limitations and restrictions of SDCL Chapter 34-20G, the provisions of this Ordinance, and any conditions imposed on a license pursuant to this Ordinance, and the provisions of the Davison County Zoning Ordinance.
- B. It is unlawful for any person to consume or to permit the consumption of cannabis in or upon the premises of any medical cannabis dispensary.
- C. It is unlawful and a violation of this Ordinance for a medical cannabis dispensary to operate until it has been licensed under this Ordinance by the Davison County Commission and also licensed by the State of South Dakota pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G.
- D. It is unlawful and a violation of this Ordinance and, further, a violation of each license issued pursuant to this Ordinance for a person or licensee to commit any act or omission which is unlawful pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G. In addition to the criminal penalties specified therein, any licensee who commits any acts that are unlawful pursuant to this Ordinance and/or pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G will be subject to a summary suspension and/or a revocation of its license.
- E. In addition to any other civil or criminal sanction prescribed by South Dakota law or rules promulgated pursuant thereto, the Davison County Commission has the power, on its own motion or on complaint, after investigation and opportunity for a public hearing

at which the licensee will be afforded an opportunity to be heard, to impose a civil penalty for violation of the terms of this Ordinance, and, in addition thereto or as an alternative thereto, restrict, suspend, revoke or rescind a license or order issued by the Davison County Commission for a violation by the licensee, or by any of the agents or employees of the licensee, of the provisions of this Ordinance, SDCL Chapter 34-20G, and/or of any of the other terms, conditions or provisions of the license issued by the Davison County Commission.

F. No medical cannabis dispensary approved pursuant to this Ordinance may sell cannabis at any time except between the hours of 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., unless a more restrictive time is set by the regulations promulgated by the South Dakota Department of Health pursuant to SDCL Chapter 34-20G.

#### Section 12. Enforcement.

- A. The Davison County Sheriff is the enforcement agency relative to compliance with the provisions of this Ordinance.
- B. The Davison County Sheriff is authorized to inspect licensed premises, or premises to be licensed, and to investigate any alleged violations arising under this Ordinance or state law. Licensed medical cannabis dispensaries must cooperate fully with any investigation. Failure to do so constitutes an independent violation of this Ordinance.
- C. Violation proceedings may be initiated upon a finding of reasonable suspicion of one or more violations by the Davison County Sheriff. A notice of hearing will be set and a hearing before the Davison County Commission will be set. Prior to the violation hearing, the Davison County Commission may summarily suspend the license if it finds that the alleged violations could affect public safety.
- D. If a hearing is set under subsection C above, the licensee or approved applicant will be notified by certified mail of the hearing and of the allegations no less than ten (10) days in advance of the hearing.
- E. In deciding whether a license should be subjected to a civil penalty, suspended, or revoked in accordance with this section, and in deciding what conditions to impose in the event of a suspension, if any, the Davison County Commission will consider:
  - 1. The nature and seriousness of the violation;
  - 2. Corrective action, if any, taken by the licensee;
  - 3. Prior violation(s), if any, at the licensed premises by the licensee and the effectiveness of prior corrective action, if any;
  - 4. The likelihood of recurrence;
  - 5. All circumstances surrounding the violation;
  - 6. Whether the violation was willful;
  - 7. The length of time the license has been held by the licensee;
  - 8. The number of violations by the licensee within the applicable twelve (12) month period;
  - 9. Previous sanctions, if any, imposed against the licensee;
  - 10. Whether the licensee has a responsible vendor designation;
  - 11. Whether the licensee supports other local businesses including without limitation the display of local art or use of local ancillary businesses;

- 12. Whether the licensee has contributed to or been involved in a charitable giving program; and
- 13. Any other factor making the situation with respect to the licensee or the licensed premises unique.
- 14. Civil penalties imposed in addition to, or as the sole penalty for, a violation, or in combination with suspension or revocation, will be in the sole discretion of the Davison County Commission but will not exceed the sum of \$500 for each, discrete and separate violation.
- F. Notice of the imposition of a civil penalty, suspension, or revocation will be given by mailing the same in writing to the licensee at the licensee's last address of record with Davison County.

#### Section 13. Fees.

- A. Operating fees and all other fees necessary for the administration, regulation, and implementation of this Ordinance are as follows:
  - 1. Application Fee
    - a. Medical Cannabis Dispensary: \$5000
  - 2. Administrative Operating Fees
    - a. Change of location applications and transfer of ownership applications will be treated as initial applications and the applicable initial operating fees will apply.
    - b. Change of Trade Name Fee: \$50
    - c. Change of Ownership Fee: \$250
  - 3. Annual Renewal Fees
    - a. Medical Cannabis Dispensary: \$5000
- B. This section will be reviewed by the Davison County Auditor and, if necessary, adjusted to reflect the direct and indirect costs incurred by the County in connection with the administration and enforcement of this Ordinance. The Davison County Commission by rule or regulation will set the due dates for any fee due pursuant to this section.

#### Section 14. Savings Clause & Severability.

If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity will not affect other provisions or applications of the Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

The Board recommended to add the language <u>nor allow</u> to Section 3(C).

# SET DATE AND TIME FOR 2ND READING OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT

Motion by Reider, second by Kiner to set June 8, 2021, at 9:45 a.m., in the Commission Chambers located at 1420 North Main St., Mitchell, SD, for the 2<sup>nd</sup> reading of the amendment to the Davison County Zoning Ordinance. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

# SET DATE AND TIME FOR 2ND READING OF THE LICENSING ORDINANCE CONCERNING IM 26

Motion by Reider, second by Claggett to set June 8, 2021, at 10:00 a.m., in the Commission Chambers located at 1420 North Main St., Mitchell, SD, for the 2<sup>nd</sup> reading of the Licensing Ordinance concerning IM 26. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

#### **RECLASSIFY EMPLOYEE**

At the request of Corrections Administrator Radel, motion by Reider, second by Weitala to reclassify Lynn Smith from part-time Corrections Officer to full-time Corrections Sergeant, effective June 12, 2021, with her wage to be set at \$19.55 with a \$.50 increase after successful completion of a six-month introductory period. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

### **APPROVE NEW HIRES**

At the request of Corrections Administrator Radel, motion by Claggett, second by Reider to approve the hire of Heather Odens effective June 12, 2021, and Abby Perez effective June 11, 2021 as full-time Correction Officers at a rate of \$18.04 with a \$.50 increase after successful completion of a six-month introductory period.

### **RECLASSIFY EMPLOYEE**

At the request of Corrections Administrator Radel, motion by Weitala, second by Kiner to approve the reclassification of Mindy Harmelink from full-time to part-time Corrections Officer, effective June 12, 2021 at a rate of \$19.13. All members voted aye. Motion Carried.

#### **APPROVE REPAIR**

At the request of Corrections Administrator Radel, motion by Kiner, second by Claggett to authorize the repair of the Live-Scan fingerprint machine at the Jail at an approximate cost of \$11,000 with the work to be done by IDEMIA of CA. All members voted aye. Motion Carried.

#### INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 10:45 a.m., as per the request of Deputy Auditor Matthews, motion by Claggett, second by Kiner to move into executive session to discuss personnel. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

# OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 11:50 a.m., motion by Reider, second by Kiner to move out of executive session. All members voted aye. Motion carried.

#### HR DISCUSSION

Deputy Auditor Meaney presented to the Board her ideas and plans as it relates to the duties of the proposed HR Director position.

#### **EXCUSE COMMSIONER REIDER**

At 12:20 p.m., Chairperson Bode excused Commissioner Reider for the remainder of the meeting.

### HR DISCUSSION

Deputy Auditor Meaney continued her presentation to the Board.

### SET DATE AND TIME FOR SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET HEARING

Motion by Weitala, second by Claggett to set June 22, 2021, at 9:15 a.m. in the Commission Chambers located at 1420 North Main Street, Mitchell, SD for a supplemental budget hearing to create a new Human Resources budget in the amount of \$50,000 and to advertise the same. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

# TABLE HR DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT

Motion by Kiner, second by Claggett to table the appointment of an HR Director until after a budget has been approved. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

#### **APPROVE BILLS**

Motion by Kiner, second by Claggett to approve the following bills for payment. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

#### **GENERAL FUND:**

**COMM:** Prof Fees/Tristar Benefit Admin-378.00, Publishing/Daily Republic Forum Communications-30.96, Supplies/McLeod's Printing-17.94, Cultural Endeavors/First Bankcard-115.00, Utilities/Brenda Bode-50.00, John Claggett-50.00, Kim Weitala-50.00, Recognition-County Fair Food Store-506.00; ELECT: Postage/First Bankcard-8.85; JUD: Prof Fees/Access Health Mitchell-2,000.00; AUD: Supplies/First Bankcard-99.00, Lien Coll Supplies/McLeod's Printing-27.90, Travel & Conf/First Bankcard-1,025.69, Utilities/Susan Kiepke-50.00; TREAS: Passport Postage/First Bankcard-23.85, Supplies/First Bankcard-243.10, McLeod's Printing-3.89, First Dakota Nat'l Bank3.00, State MV Supplies/First Bankcard-243.10, McLeod's Printing-3.90, Utilities/David Beintema-50.00, Tonya Ford-50.00, Rachel Soulek-50.00; STATES ATTY: Prof Fees/Daily Republic Forum Communications-21.02, James D Taylor-4,317.00, Div Services & Fees/A & B Business Systems-51.39, Catherine Buschbach-50.00, First Bankcard-327.28, The UPS Store-11.36; CRT APPTED ATTY: Crt Appted Atty/Morgan Theeler-999.90, Wantoch Law Office-547.00, Public Def Exp/Alvine Weidenaar-120.88; A & N: Abused & Neg Child/Morgan Theeler-445.10; PUB SFTY BLDG: Repairs/Arctic Refridgeration-87.76, Safety-Kleen-201.00, Tessier's Inc-100.00; CRTHOUSE: Repairs & Maint/Safety-Kleen-201.00, Phone/Joel Rang-50.00, Buildings/Menards-53.53; DOE:

Supplies/Innovative Office-36.75, Santel Communications-475.00, Utilities/Blake Biggerstaff-50.00, Karla Love-50.00, Carla Wittstruck-50.00; VET: Utilities/Craig Bennett-50.00, Alexander Kraus-50.00; COORD: Copy Machine Maint/A & B Business Systems-45.22, Elite Business Systems-51.09; SHERIFF: Repairs Patrol Car/First Bankcard-20.00, Office Supplies/S & M Printing-310.50, Gas Patrol Car/First Bankcard-373.46, Field Supplies/First Bankcard-14.77, Cellular Service/Dawn Grissom-50.00, Minor Equip/Light & Siren-157.00, Axon Enterprise Inc-36.60; WELFARE: Hospital QoP/Avera Queen of Peace Hosp-6,417.24, Supplies/McLeod's Printing-5.00, Travel/Debra Emme-13.44, Office Utiliteis/Debra Emme-50.00, Northwestern Energy-135.66, Catastrophic Poor Payment/SDACC-2,537.00; MENTAL ILL: Committals/Douglas Papendick-99.00, Hearings/Birmingham & Cwach Law-367.95; CO EXTENSION: Supplies/McLeod's Printing-31.96, Travel & Conf/Debra Emme-28.56, Utilities/Northwestern Energy-135.67; WEED: Supplies/Van Diest Supply-6,270.00, Utilities/City of Mitchell-5.97; DRAINAGE: Supplies/First Bankcard-21.00; P & Z: Publishing/Daily Republic Forum Communications-71.29; HIWAY: Repairs & Maint/Upper Midwest-96.93, Supplies & Materials/Fastenal Co-86.81, Utilities/City of Mitchell-33.79, Northwestern Energy-124.18, Signage & Materials/Newman Traffic Signs-33,092.49, Projects/Prahm Construction-92,495.20, Oth Projects/Prahm Construction-147,874.70, SD Dept of Transportaton-3,574.76; M&P: M&P Due to Oth Co/SDACO-M&P878.00; LIABILITIES: FAIR DEP RET/Ruth Clemente-200.00.

# **APPROVE TIMESHEETS**

Motion by Kiner, second by Claggett to authorize chairperson to sign department head timesheets as supervisor. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

#### **ACKNOWLEDGE VOLUNTEERS**

Motion by Weitala, second by Kiner to acknowledge Davison County volunteers for the month of June 2021. A complete list may be found on file in the Davison County Auditor's office. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

#### **APPROVE FMLA REQUEST**

Motion by Weitala, second by Claggett to approve an FMLA request effective May 5, 2021, for employee #3780. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

#### AUTOMATIC SUPPLEMENT

Motion by Claggett, second by Kiner to approve an automatic supplement to the Weed supply line item 4260/615 in the amount of \$4,500 received from the State of South Dakota for the 2021 Weed & Pest Grant. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

#### **APPROVE RAFFLE REQUEST**

Motion by Kiner, second by Claggett to approve a raffle request submitted by Dave Mitchell on behalf of the Davison County Democrats with the drawing to be held on November 16, 2021. All members present voted aye. Motion carried.

### **DENY WELFARE**

As per the recommendation of Welfare Intake Administrative Assistant Emme motion by Weitala, second by Kiner to deny welfare claim #19-2841 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1(3) physician not noted on notice as required, SDCL 28-13-32.10 indigent by design, and SDCL 28-13-27(6)(d) failure to purchase health insurance through spouse; claim #19-3248 & #19-3705 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1(3) physician not noted on notice as required and SDCL 28-13-32.10 indigent by design; claim #19-9664 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1(3) physician not noted on notice as required, SDCL 28-13-27.1(5) less costly avenue available for services, SDCL 28-13-3 residency required and SDCL 28-13-32.10 indigent by design; claim #19-0521 & #19-7495 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1(3) physician not noted on notice as required and SDCL 28-13-3 residency required; claim # 19-1101 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1(3) physician not noted on notice as required and SDCL 28-13-34.1 (7) estimated amount of services not noted on notice as required; claim #19-9452 & #19-5342 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1 physician not noted on notice as required and SDCL 28-13-27.1(5) less costly avenue available for services; claim #21-7774 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-33 prior authorization required and SDCL 28-13-32.9 has the ability to pay; claim # 21-4199 & #21-3058 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-3 residency required for assistance; claim #19-8136 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-3 residency required and SDCL 28-13-32.10 indigent by design; claim #18-1722, #18-4471, #19-4541, #20-2034, & #19-9478 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-32.10 indigent by design; claim #2252 had other forms of payment and family has asset values over poverty levels; claim #19-9430, #19-9362, #19-8671, #19-0206, #19-8226, #19-1540, #19-1497, #19-8213, #19-3056, #19-3870 and #19-3493 pursuant to SDCL 28-13-34.1(3) physician not noted on notice as required. All members present voted ave. Motion carried.

# ADJOURN

At 12:55 p.m., Chairperson Bode adjourned the meeting and set the next regular Board of Commissioners meeting for June 8, 2021, at 9:00 a.m.

#### ATTEST

James Matthews, Deputy Auditor

Brenda Bode, Chairperson

Publish Once Approximate Cost